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SINGAPORE DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT
For the financial year ended 37 March 2013

The directors present their report to the members together with the audited financial
statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2013.

Directors

°fhe directors in office at the date of this report are as follows:

Mr Koh Yong Guan, Chairman (Appointed on 1 May 2012)
Mr Han Eng Juan
Mrs Hauw-Quek Soo Hoon
Mr Wong Yew Meng
Mr Ang Peng Koon Patrick (Appointed on 31 July 2012)

Directors in office during the financial year but not at the date of this report are as follows:

Mr James Koh Cher Siang, Chairman
Mr Thean Lip Ping
Mr Vinodh Coomaraswamy

(Resigned with effect from 1 May 2012)
(Resigned with effect from 31 May 2012)
(Resigned with effect from 31 July 2012)

Arrangements to enable directors to acquire benefits

Neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to
any arrangement whose object was to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
body corporate.

Directors' interests in shares or debentures

According to the register of directors' shareholdings, none of the directors holding office
at the end of the financial year had any interest in the shares ar debentures of the
Company or its related corporations.

The Company is a public company limited by guarantee and has no share capital. Three
directors are also members of the Company, but they have no personal interest in the
Company, which is designated under the Deposit Insurance and Policy Owners'
Protection Schemes Act Cap. 77B as the deposit insurance and policy owners' protection
fund agency. There were also no debentures in issue in the Company at the end of the
financial year.

Dividends

In accordance with the Memorandum of Association of the Company, no dividends shall
be paid to its members.



SINGAPORE DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT
For the financial year ended 31 March 2013

Directors' contractual benefits

Except as disclosed in the accompanying financial statements, since the end of the
previous financial year, no director of the Company has received or become entitled to
receive a benefit by reason of a contract made by the Company with the director, or with
a firm of which the director is a member, or with a company in which the director has a
substantial financial interest.

Share options

The Company is a company limited by guarantee. As such, there are no share options or
unissued ordinary shares.

Auditors

Ernst &Young LLP have expressed their willingness to accept reappointment as auditors.

On behalf of the board of directors

KOH YONG GUA
Director

21 June 2013

HAN ENG JUA
Director
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SINGAPORE DEPQSlT INSURANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS
For the financial year ended 37 March 2073

In the opinion of the directors,

(i) the accompanying financial statements as set out on pages 6 to 24 are drawn

up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at

31 March 2013 and of the results and cash flows of the Company for the

financial year then ended; and

(ii) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the

Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

On behalf of the board of directors

~~

KOH YONG GUAN
Director

21 June 2013

Gt,~,,t,2~i„ ate.-ewe

HAN ENG J N
Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDI70R'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
SINGAPORE DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

For the financial year ended 31 March 2013

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Singapore Deposit Insurance
Corporation Limited (the "Company"), set out on pages 6 to 24, which comprise the
balance sheet as at 31 March 2013, the statement of comprehensive income and cash
flow statement of the Company for the financial year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's responsibility for the financial stater~nents

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act, Cap. 50
(the "Act"), the Deposit Insurance and Policy Owners' Protection Schemes Act Cap. 77B
(the "DI-PPF Act") and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards, and for devising and
maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition;
and transactions are properly authorised and that they are. recorded as necessary to
permit the preparation of true and fair profit and loss accounts and balance sheet and to
maintain accountability of assets.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
{NG~APOR€ D€PO~II' IIV5Ui3AElCE CORPORA'~I~~J LiMI'~~D
For the financial year ended 31 March 2013 (continued)

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements of the Company are properly drawn up in
accordance with the provisions of the Act, the DI-PPF Act and Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2013 and the results and cash flows of the Company for the
financial year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion,

(a) the accounting and other records required by the Act and the DI-PPF Act to be
kept by the Company have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions
of these Acts; and

(b) the receipts, expenditure, investment of moneys and the acquisition and disposal
of assets by the Company during the financial year have been made in
accordance with the provisions of DI-PPF Act.

~~,

Ernst &Young LLP
Public Accountants and
Certified Public Accountants
Singapore
21 June 2013



SINGAPORE DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial year ended 37 March 2013

Income:
Recovery from the Deposit Insurance Fund
Recovery from the Policy Owners' Protection Life
Fund

Recovery from the Policy Owners' Protection
General Fund

Government grants
Total income

Expenses:
Employee compensation
Depreciation and amortisation
Other expenses
Total expenses

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense

Net profit

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Note 2013 2012

$ $

2.2 2,100,916 1,530,798

2.2 747,757 625,085

2.2 424,932 352,646
2.2 4,439 907

3,278,044 2,509,436

3 1,399,178 1,115, 318
8, 9 584,008 494,327
4 1,294,858 899,791

3,278,044 2,509,436

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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SINGAPORE DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
As at 37 March 2013

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Prepayments

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Advance from the Deposit Insurance Fund
Advance from the Policy Owners' Protection Life
Fund
Advance from the Policy Owners' Protection
General Fund
Other payables
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Note 2013 2012
$ $

6 3,540,364 1,708,903
7 174,585 169,187

4,793 8,374
3,720,342 1,886,464

8 47,116 20,983
9 952,980 1,209,197

1,000,096 1,230,180

4,720,438 3,116,644

10 2,141,405 2,546,139

10 1,276,373 245,745

10 726,627
10 576,033

149,744
175,016

4,720,438 3,116,644

The Company is a public company limited by guarantee and has no share capital. The
Company has no retained earnings or accumulated losses since its incorporation. As
such, no statement of change in equity is pr~s~nted.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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SINGAPORE DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the financial year ended 37 March 2013

Note

Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Government grants

Changes in working capital
Trade and other receivables
Advance from the Deposit Insurance Fund
Advance from the Policy Owners' Protection Life Fund
Advance from the Policy Owners' Protection General Fund
Other payables
Prepayments
Government grants received

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Additions to property, plant and equipment
Additions to intangible assets
Net cash used in investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year 6
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year 6

2013 2012

584,008 494,327
(4,439) (907)

579,569 493,420

(5,398) (81,514)
(404,734) 1,132,252
1,030,628 245,745
576,883 149,744
401,017 (64,342)

3, 581 6, 306
4,439 907

2,185,985 1,882,518

(42,722) (23,041)
(311,202) (606,975)
(353,924) (630,016)

1,832,061 1,252,502
1,708,903 456,401
3,540,964 1,708,903

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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SINGAPORE DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 37 March 2073

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying financial statements.

1. General information

Singapore Deposit Insurance Corporation Limited (hereinafter called the
"Company") is designated under section 56 of the Deposit Insurance and Policy
Owners' Protection Schemes Act Cap. 77B (the "DI-PPF Act") to be the deposit
insurance and policy owners' protection fund agency (the "Agency") for the
purposes of the DI-PPF Act. The Company was previously designated by the
Minister and~r ~e~tion '.2 of the DQpo~it !̂ Jury^~~ °st Cup. 77~ (thy "D! ~~t"; G~
the deposit insurance agency until the repeal of the DI Act on 1 May 2011.
Accordingly, in the notes to the financial statements, DI-PPF Act refers collectively
to the DI Act in force up to 30 April 2011 and the D1-PPF Act which came into
force on 1 May 2011. The Company is a public company limited by guarantee
incorporated under the Companies Act Cap. 50 on 13 January 2006 and is
domiciled in Singapore. The address of its registered office is 10 Shenton Way,
#11-06, MAS Building, Singapore 079117.

The objects of the Company are as stipulated under section 57 of the DI-PPF Act,
and include the following:

(a) to administer the Deposit Insurance Scheme (the "DI Scheme") and the
Policy Owners' Protection Scheme (the "PPF Scheme") in accordance with
the DI-PPF Act;

(b) to administer and manage the Deposit Insurance Fund. (the "DI Fund"), the
Policy Owners' Protection Life Fund (the "PPF Life Fund") and the Policy
Owners' Protection General Fund (the "PPF General Fund") in accordance
with the DI-PPF Act;

(c) to administer and manage the insurance business of a failed PPF Scheme
member; and

(d) to take such steps as may be directed by the Minister or after consultation
with the Monetary Authority of Singapore, to contribute to the stability of
the financial system.

In order to fulfil the above objects, the Company may transfer moneys to its
account from the DI Fund, the PPF Life Fund and the PPF General Fund pursuant
to section 57(4) of the DI-PPF Act.

The DI Scheme was established in Singapore for the benefit of insured depositors
in respect of their insured deposits placed with DI Scheme members as specified
in the DI-PPF Act. The PPF Scheme was established in Singapore for the benefit
of policy owners in respect of their protected policies as specified in the DI-PPF
Act.

The DI Fund re-constituted under section 9 of the DI-PPF Act, and subject to the
directions of the Minister, is administered and managed by the Company. All
premium contributions and moneys receivable under the DI Scheme are payable
into the DI Fund and all expenditure and other moneys are payable out of the DI
Fund as authorised under the DI-PPF Act.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



SINGAPORE DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO ThIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial year ended 31 March 2073

1. General information (continued)

The PPF Life Fund and the PPF General Fund, established under section 34 of
the DI-PPF Act, and subject to the directions of the Minister, are administered and
managed by the Company. All levies and moneys receivable under the PPF
Scheme from Scheme members carrying on life business are payable into the
PPF Life Fund and all expenditure and other moneys are payable out of the PPF
Life-Fund as authorised under the DI-RRF-Act. All levies and moneys-receivable
under the PPF Scheme from Scheme members carrying on general business are
payable into the PPF General Fund and all expenditure and other moneys are
payable out of the PPF General Fund as authorised under the DI-PPF Act.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of ,preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore
Financial Reporting Standards ("FRS"). The financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except as disclosed in the
accounting policies below.

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with FRS requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company's
accounting policies. It also requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates
and assumptions. Although these estimates are based on the Company's best
knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ from
those estimates. The area involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or area where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements, is as follows:

Amortisation of intangible assets

These assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. Management estimates the useful lives of these assets to be within 3 to 5
years. Changes in the expected level of usage and technological developments
could impact the economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets,
therefore future amortisation charges could be revised.

Interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2072

The new or amended FRS and Interpretations to FRS mandatory for application
from 1 April 2012 did not have any material impact on the Company's financial
statements.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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SINGAPORE DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial vear ended 37 March 2013

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Revenue reco nition

Income from the DI Fund, the PPF Life Fund and the PPF General Fund
(hereafter collectively referred to as the "Funds") represent moneys recoverable
ftom the DI Fund, the PPF Life Fund and the PPF General Fund respectively for
expenditure properly incurred and as authorised under the D(-PPF Act.

Income from the DI Fund, the PPF Life Fund and the PPF General Fund is
rP~r~gt~iSaci i~t tl~~ r~pript~l in vy~i~h tha rala~~ant a~rr~~n~lit~ ira jc r~~rya~ try tic;

statement of comprehensive income.

Government grants received are recognised as income.

2.3 Property, plant and eauipment

(a) Recognition and Measurement

Property, plant and equipment are recognised at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses (Note 2.6).

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase
price and any costs that are directly attributable to bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management.

(b) Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate depreciable amounts over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful lives are as follows

Useful lives

Furniture, fittings and other office equipment 3 to 5 years
Computer equipment and software 3 to 5 years

The residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation method of
property, plant and equipment are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate,
at each balance sheet date. The effects of any revision are recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income when the changes arise.

(c) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment that has
already been recognised is added to the carrying amount of the asset only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be reliably measured.
All other repair and maintenance expenses are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income when incurred.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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SINGAPORE DEPOSIT INSUI~AN~E CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 March 2013

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Property, plant and e uipment (continued)

(d) Disposal

On disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment, the difference
between the disposal proceeds and its -carrying amount is recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income.

2.4 Intangible assets

Intangible assets consist of computer software and development costs for
computer application systems.

(a) Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are recognised at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses (Note 2.6).

The cost of an item of intangible asset includes its purchase price and any
costs that are directly attributable to bringing to use or to develop the
specific asset.

(b) Amortisation

Amortisation of intangible assets is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful lives are 3 to 5 years.

The residual values, estimated useful lives and. amortisation method of
intangible assets are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each
balance sheet date. The effects of any revision are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income when the changes arise.

Intangible assets under development are not amortised.

(c) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure relating to intangible assets that has already been
recognised is added to the carrying amount of the asset only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be reliably measured. All other
subsequent expenses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income when incurred.

(d) Disposal

On disposal of an item of intangible assets, the difference between the
disposal proceeds and its carrying amount is recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

12



SINGAPORE DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 March 2013

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Advances from the Funds and other payables

Advances from the DI Fund, the PPF Life Fund and the PPF General Fund and
other payabies are initially carried at fair value, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method. They constitute total financial
liabilities which amounted to $4,72D,438 (2012: $3,116;644).

2.6 Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever there is any objective evidence or indication that these assets may be
impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the
fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual
asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. If this is the case, the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit ("CGU") to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of the asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. The difference between the carrying amount and recoverable
amount is recognised as an impairment loss in the statement of comprehensive
income.

An impairment- loss for an asset is reversed if, and only if, there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the asst's recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognised. The carrying amount of an asset is
increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have. been determined (net of
accumulated depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of impairment loss for an asset
is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

2.7 Financial assets

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.

Loans and receivables include "cash and cash equivalents" and "trade and other
- receivables"- on- the balance sheet and amours#ed to - $3;715,549 (2012:

$1,878,090). They are presented as current. assets, except for those maturing
later than 12 months after the balance sheet date which are presented as non-
current assets.

These financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction cost
and subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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SINGAPORE DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial vear ended 37 March 2013.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.7 Financial assets ~continued~

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. On disposal of a
financial asset, the difference between the net sale proceeds and -its carrying
amount is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective
evidence that these financial assets are impaired and recognises an allowance for
impairment when such evidence exists. Significant financial difficulties of the
debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation,
and default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the
receivable is impaired. The carrying amount of these assets is reduced through
the use of an impairment allowance account, which is calculated as the difference
between the assets carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The amount of the
allowance for impairment is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income. When the asset becomes uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
recognised against the same line item in profit or loss.

Impairment loss is reversed through the statement of comprehensive income. The
carrying amount of the asset previously impaired is increased to the extent that
the new carrying amount does not exceed the amortised cost had no impairment
been recognised in prior periods.

2.8 Operating lease payments

Leases of assets where substantially all risks and rewards incidental to ownership
are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

When a lease is terminated before the lease period expires, any payment made
(or received) by the Company as penalty is recognised as an expense (or income)
when termination takes place.

2.9 Employee compensation

(a) Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which
the Company pays fixed contributions into separate entities such as the
Central Provident Fund, and will have no legal or constructive obligation to
pay further contributions if any of the funds do not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employee benefits relating to employee services in the current and
preceding financial years. The Company's contribution to the defined
contribution plans are recognised in the financial period to which they
relate.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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SINGAPORE DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 March 2073

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.9 Employee compensation~continued,~

(b) Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long-service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave and long-service leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

(c) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Company recognises
termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either:
terminating the employment of current employees according to a detailed
formal plan without possibility of withdrawal; or providing termination
benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after balance sheet date are
discounted to present value.

2.10 Currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the "functional currency"). The financial statements are
presented in Singapore Dollars, which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Transactions denominated in a currency other than Singapore Dollar
("foreign currency") are translated into Singapore Dollar using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Currency
translation differences resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at the closing rates at the balance sheet date of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items measured at fair values in foreign currencies are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair values are
determined.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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SINGAPORE DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 37 March 2093

3

4.

5.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Company will comply
with the attached conditions. Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and taken to the statement of comprehensive income over the period necessary to
match them with the costs they are intended to compensate. Government grants
relating to assets are included in non-current liabilities as other liabilities and are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the expected useful lives of the related assets.

Employee compensation

Wages and salaries
Employer's contribution to Central Provident Fund
Directors' fees
Others

Other expenses

Rental
Office maintenance
Telecommunication charges
Travel
Trade association membership
Audit fees
Legal, accounting and other fees
Company secretary fees
Consultancy fees
IT expenses
Publicity
Others

Income tax expense

2013 2012
$ 

$

1,221,914 1,001,544
104,361 76,311
68,438 33,750
4,465 3,713

1,399,178 1,115, 318

2013 2012
$ $

224,911 193,736
7,013 5,210
4,094 3,735
12,739 5,995
15,832 15,930
34,796 30,500
2,925 11,912
2,390 1,930

199,446 151,480
313,748 255,334
458,287 204,718
18,677 19,311

1,294,858 899,791

The expenses recovered from the DI Fund, the PPF Life Fund and the PPF
General Fund are not taxable as long as the income of the respective fund is
exempted from income tax. Each fund is exempted from income tax until such
time that the fund reaches its target fund size or 2018, whichever is the earlier.

The accompanying notes form an infiegral part of these financial statements.
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SINGAPORE DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 37 March 2013

6.

f~

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and on hand

2013 2012
$ $

3,540,964 1,70,903

Cash at bank and on hand. constitute moneys withdrawn by the Company from:

(a) the DI Fund to carry out the objects and purposes of the DI Scheme
:pursuant to section 10 of the Dl-PPF Act; and

,b) the °DF ~if~ ~~nd end #h~ ~~~F C'EC1cidl Fund tc ~arr~ ~u# the ~bjzcts aru
purposes of the PPF Scheme pursuant to section 35 of the DI-PPF Act.

As the Agency of the respective Funds as defined in the DI-PPF Act, the
Company can only utilise the money in the bank accounts for purposes as stated
above. Therefore, the cash at bank (bank accounts) are held in the name of the
Company but are specified as trust accounts.

Cash at bank and on hand are all denominated in Singapore Dollar.

Trade and other receivables

Refundable deposits
Receivable from Comptroller of Goods and
Services Tax

2013 2012
$ $

56,355 56,635

118,230 112,552
174,585 169,187

Trade and other receivables are all denominated in Singapore Dollar.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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SINGAPORE DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEME[VTS
For the financial year ended 31 March 2073

8. Property, plant and equipment

2013
Cost
Beginning of financial year
Additions
End of financial year

Accumulated depreciation
Beginning of financial year
Depreciation
End of financial year

Net book value
End of financial year

2012
Cost
Beginning of financial year
Additions
End of financial year

Accumulated depreciation
Beginning of financial year
Depreciation
End of financial year

Net book value
End of financial year

Furniture,
fittings and Computer
other office equipment
equipment and software Total

$ 

$ $

78,827 214,216 293,043
- 42,722 42,722

78,827 256,938 335,765

60,510 211,550 272,060
4,575 12,014 16,589

65,085 223,564 288,649

13,742 33,374 47,116

56,886 213,116 270,002
21,941 1,100 23,041
78,827 214,216 293,043

56,886 208,042 264,928
3,624 3,508 7,132

60,510 211,550 272,060

18,317 2,666 20,983

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



SINGAPORE DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 March 2013

9. Intangible assets
Software

Computer under
software development Total

$

$ $

2013
Cost
Beginning of financial year 2,746,754

- 2,746,754
Additions 311,202 - 311,202
End of financial year 3,057,956 - 3,057,956

Accumulated amortisation
Beginning of financial year 1,537,557 - 1,537,557
Amortisation 567,419 - 567,419
End of financial year 2,104,976 - 2,104,976

Net book value
End of financial year 952,980 - 952,980

2012
Cost
Beginning of financial year 1,826,704 313,075 2,139,779
Additions 269,100 337,875 606,975
Transfers 650,950 (650,950) -
End of financial year 2,746,754 - 2,746,754

Accumulated amortisation
Beginning of financial year 1,050,362 - 1,050,362
Amortisation 487,195 - 487,195
End of financial year 1,537,557 - 1,537,557

Net book value
End of financial year 1,209,197 - 1,209,197

10. Advances from the Funds and other payables

Advances from the DI Fund, the PPF Life Fund and the PPF General Fund to
cover the Company's operating and capital expenditures and other payables are
interest free and have no fixed term of repayment. They are denominated in
Singapore Dollar.

11. Goads and Services Tax ("GST")

The Company has been granted remission of GST input tax on all business
purchases made by the Company

(a) on behalf of the DI Fund, for the period from the incorporation of the
Company until such time when the fund reaches the size of 0.3% of the
aggregate of the insured deposit base of every DI Scheme member or 2018,
whichever is the earlier.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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SINGAPORE DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 37 March 2073

11. Goods and Services Tax ("GST") (continued)

(b) on behalf of the PPF Life Fund, from the inception of the fund until such time
when the fund reaches the size of 0.61 % of the aggregate protected
liabilities in respect of insured policies covered under the PPF Life Fund or
2018, whichever is the earlier; and

(c) on behalf of the PPF General Fund, from the inception of the fund- until such
time when the fund reaches the size of 1.51 % of the gross premium income
in respect of insured policies covered under the PPF General Fund or 2018,
whichever is the earlier.

12. Company limited by guarantee

The Company is a public company limited by guarantee and has no share capital.
In the event of a winding-up of the Company, the liability of each of the 3
members of the Company is limited to such amount as may be required but not
exceeding the sum of $1.

13. Commitments

(a) Capital commitments

Capital expenditures contracted for at the balance sheet date but not recognised
in the financial statements, are as follows:

2013 2012
$ 

$

Property, plant and equipment 404,860 21,542
Intangible asset - Software under development 1,798,032 219,100

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Company leases office premises under non-cancellable operating lease
agreement. The lease has ranging terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases contracted for at the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities, are as
follows:

2013 2012
$ 

$

Not later than one year 204,618 223,219
Later than one year but not later than five years - 204,618

204,618 427,837

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

20



SINGAPORE DEPOSIT INSURANCE GORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial near ended 37 March 2013

14. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's activities expose it to credit risk and liquidity risk.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial
instruments should a counterparty default on its obligation. The Company's
exposure to credit risk arises primarily from trade and other receivables and
current account balance held with banks. The Company minimises credit risk
gay dealing ~~,~it" credit worthy parti~~. Tie Company's franc~al assets
comprise:

(i) cash and cash equivalent that are placed with major banks in
Singapore; and

(ii) trade and other receivables totalling $174,585 (2012: $169,187) of
which 99% (2012: 99%) are due from the Singapore Government and
the Monetary Authority of Singapore.

The Company has no past due or impaired assets.

(b) Liauidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting
financial obligations due to shortage of funds.

(i) Liabilities-related risk

The Company's budget is determined before the start of each financial
year in accordance with the provisions of the DI-PPF Act. The
Company would ensure that each of the DI Fund, the PPF Life Fund
and the PPF General Fund, maintains sufficient cash and liquid assets
to meet the Company's budget spending in respect of the individual
funds.

All financial liabilities of the Company are current and due within the
next 12 months or are repayable on demand.

(ii) Contingent liabilities-related risk

The making of compensation payments pursuant to the DI Scheme
established under the DI-PPF Act arises from the occurrence of future
events that are not within the control of the DE Fund or the
Company. The Company will pay compensation out of the DI Fund to
the insured depositors of a failed DI Scheme member when required to
do so by the Monetary Authority of Singapore (the "MAS") under
section 21(2) of the DI-PPF Act. The Company may raise cash from
the assets held by the DI Fund which comprises Singapore
Government Securities and MAS bills. Where this is insufficient, the
Company will obtain loans on behalf of the DI Fund while awaiting
payments from the realisation of the assets of the failed DI Scheme
member.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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SINGAPORE DEPOSIT INSURANCE GORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO T'HE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 37 March 2013

14. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

(b) ~iquidity risk,~continued)

(ii) Contingent liabilities-related risk (continued)

The Company entered into an agreement with the MAS on 9
February 2012 where the MAS may provide the Company a
contingent liquidity facility of up to $20 billion, in the event liquidity
is needed for compensation payments to insured depositors. For
the financial year ended 31 March 2013, there was no request and
no drawdown on the facility. Furthermore, the Company may raise
additional premium contributions in accordance with section 15 of
the DI-PPF Act.

The making of payments pursuant to the PPF Scheme established
under the DI-PPF Act arises from the occurrence of future events
that are not within the control of the PPF Life Fund, the PPF
General Fund or the Company. When required by the MAS under
section 46(2) of the DI-PPF Act, the Company will pay out of or
utilise the PPF Life Fund or the PPF General Fund in the following
manner:

make payment of compensation to insured policy owners or
third parties;
utilise the PPF Life Fund or the PPF General Fund to fund
transfer or run-off of the insurance business of a failed PPF
Scheme member.

The Company may raise cash from the assets held by the PPF Life
Fund or the PPF General Fund which comprises Singapore
Government Securities and MAS bills. Where this is insufficient,
the Company will obtain- loans on behalf of the PPF Life Fund or
the PPF General Fund while awaiting payments from realisation of
the assets of the failed PPF Scheme member. The Company may
also raise additional levies in accordance with section 40 of the DI-
PPF Act.

(c) Market risk

(i) Currency risk

The Company's business operations are not exposed to significant
foreign currency risks as it has no significant transactions
denominated in foreign currencies.

(ii) Equity price risk

The Company has no exposure to equity price risk as it does not
hold equity financial assets.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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SINGAPORE DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 March 2013

14. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

(c) Market risk (continued

(iii) Interest rate risk

The Company has insignificant financial assets or liabilities that are
exposed to interest rate risks as the advances from the Funds are
interest-free.

(d; Fair vw!ue measurer~en#

At 31 March 2013, there were no assets or liabilities carried at fair value on
the balance sheet (2012: Nil).

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, prepayments, advance from the DI Fund, advance from the
PPF Life Fund, advance from the PPF General Fund and other payables
approximate their fair values at the balance sheet date due to their short-
term nature.

15. Related party transactions

(a) Purchase of services

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements, the following transaction between the Company and a firm of which a
director of the Company was a partner for part of the year took place on terms
agreed between the parties during the financial year:

2013 2012
$ $

Purchase of services —legal advice and company
secretarial services 4,940 11,650

The director was in office during the financial year but not at the date of this
report.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these €financial statements.
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SINGAPORE DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 37 March 2073

15. Related party transactions (continued)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

Key management personnel compensation is as follows:

2013 2012
$ 

$

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 385,559 313,792
Post-employment benefits - contribution to
Central Provident Fund 6,797 7,168

392,356 320,960

16. Capital management

The Company does not have a share capital and does not borrow to finance day-
to-day expenditures. Since expenditures are made on behalf of the Funds, the
Company draws advances from the Funds to pay their respective share of capital
and operating expenditures and recovers their respective share of operating
expenditures and depreciation amounts by offsetting against the advances from
the Funds at the end of each financial year.

To safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, the Company
ensures that the Funds maintain sufficient cash and liquid assets to meet their
respective share of the Company's budget for capital and operating expenditures.

17. New or revised accounting standards and interpretations

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards
have been published and are mandatory for the Company's accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 or later periods and which the Company has
not early adopted. The Company anticipates that the adoption of these standards,
amendments and interpretations will not have a material impact on the Company's
financial statements.

18. Authorisation of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a
resolution of the Board of Directors of Singapore Deposit Insurance Corporation
Limited on 21 June 2013.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DEPOSIT INSURANCE FUND

STATEMENT BY SINGAPORE DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
For the financial year ended 37 March 2073

In the opinion of the directors of Singapore Deposit Insurance Corporation Limited (the
"Agency"),

(a) the accompanying financial statements as set out on pages 4 to 16 are drawn up
so as to present fairly, in all material respects, the state of affairs of the Deposit
Insurance Fund (the,"DI Fund") as at 31 March 2013, and the results, cash flows
and changes in accumulated surplus for the financial year ended 31 March 2013
and have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Deposit
Insurance and Policy Owners' Protection Schemes Act Cap. 776 (the "DI-PPF
Act"); and

(b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the DI
Fund will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

On behalf of Singapore Deposit Insurance Corporation Limited

l

j ~-cvJ
~.

KOH YONG G AN HAN ENG J N
Director Director

21 June 2013



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
SINGAPORE DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

- DEPOSIT INSURANCE FUND
For the financial year er~d~d 3'f March 2013

Report on the Financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Deposit Insurance Fund (the
"DI Fund"), set Qut on pages 4 to 16, uvhich comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March
2013, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in accumulated
surplus and cash flow statement for the financial year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

The management of Singapore Deposit Insurance Corporation Limited (the "Agency") is
responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with the provisions of the Deposit Insurance and Policy Owners' Protection
Schemes Act Cap. 776 ("the DI-PPF Act") and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards,
and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to
provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from
unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they
are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair profit and loss
accounts and balance sheet and to maintain accountability of assets.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management of the Agency, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
SINGAPORE DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

- DEPOSIT INSURANCE FUND
For the financial year end@d 31 March 2013 (continued)

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements of the DI Fund are properly drawn up in
accordance with the provisions of the DI-PPF Act and Singapore Financial Reporting
Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the DI Fund as at 31
March 2013 and the results, changes in accumulated surplus and cash flows of the DI
Fund for the financial year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion,

(a) the accounting and other records have been properly kept, including records of all
assets of the DI Fund whether purchased, donated or otherwise; and

(b) the receipts, expenditure and investment of moneys by the DI Fund during the
financial year have been made in accordance with the provisions of the DI-PPF
Act.

Ernst &Young LLP
Public Accountants and
Certified Public Accountants
Singapore
21 June 2013
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DEPOSIT INSURANCE FUND

STATEMENT OF G4MPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial year ended 31 March 2073

Income:
Premium contributions
Interest income from financial assets

Expenses:
Net expenditure incurred by Singapore Deposit
Insurance Corporation Limited

Other expenses
Total expenses

Net surplus

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Note 2013 2012
$ $

2.2 25,119,738 23,196,519
2.2 3,672,744 2,997,187

28,792,482 26,193,706

3 2,100,916 1,530,798
60 40

2,100,976 1,530,838

26,691,506 24,662,868

26,691,506 24,662,868

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DEPOSIT INSURANCE FUND

BALANCE SHEET
As at 37 March 2073

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Advance to the Agency
Other receivables
Financial assets, held-to-maturity

Non-current assets
Financial assets, held-to~maturity

TOTAL ASSETS AND NET ASSETS

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS

Note 2013 2012
$ $

5 21,785 1,606,359
6 2,141,405 2,546,139
6 418,773 265,779
7 4,773,552 999,440

7,355,515 5,417,717

7 123,273,552 98,519,844

130, 629, 067 103, 937, 561

130, 629, 067 103, 937, 561

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DEPOSIT INSURANCE FUND

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the financial year ended 31 March 2013

Note 2013 2012
$ $

Beginning of financial year 103,937,561 79,274,693

Total comprehensive income for the financial year 2~,69'i,50~ 24,662,868

End of financial year 8(d) 130,629,067 103,937,561

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DEPOSIT INSURANCE FUND

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the financial near ended 37 March 2073

Cash flows from operating activities
Net surplus
Less: Interest income from financial assets

Changes in working capital
- Advance to the Agency
-Other receivables

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of financial assets, held-to-maturity
Proceeds upon maturity of financial assets,

held-to-maturity
Interest received from financial assets
Net cash used in investing activities

Note 2013 2012

$ 

$

26,691,506 24,662,868
(3,672,744) (2,997,187)
23,018,762 21,665,681

404,734 (1,132,252)

23,423,496 20,534,888

(29,777,914) (25,770,290)

999,150 999,130
3,770,694 3,103,030

(25,008,070) (21,668,130)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,584,574) (1,133,242)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year 5 1,606,359 2,739,601
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year 5 21,785 1,606,359

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DEPOSIT INSURANCE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 37 March 2073

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying financial statements.

1. General information

The Deposit Insurance Fund (the "DI Fund") was established under section 9 of
the Deposit insurance Act Cap. 77A (the "DI Act") and re-constituted on 1 May
2011 under section 9 of the Deposit Insurance and Policy Owners' Protection
Schemes Act Cap. 77B (the "DI-PPF Act"). Accordingly, in the notes to the
f9nancia! ~tatemer~t~, Dl~PPF °ct refers co!l~ctiv~ly to the D! ~~# 9n ford up to 30
April 2011 and the DI-PPF Act which came into force on 1 May 2011. Subject to
the directions of the Minister, the DI Fund is administered and managed by
Singapore Deposit Insurance Corporation Limited (the "Agency") designated by
the Minister under section 56 of the DI-PPF Act as the deposit insurance and
policy owners' protection fund agency in 2011.

The Agency is a public company limited by guarantee incorporated under the
Companies Act Cap. 50 on 13 January 2006 and is domiciled in Singapore. The
address of its registered office is 10 Shenton Way, #11-06, MAS Building,
Singapore 079117.

The principal activities of the Agency are the administra#ion of the Deposit
Insurance Scheme (the "DI Scheme") and the Policy Owners' Protection Scheme
and the administration and management of the DI Fund, the Policy Owners'
Protection Life Fund and the Policy Owners' Protection General Fund.

The DI Scheme was established in Singapore for the benefit of insured depositors
in respect of their insured deposits placed with DI Scheme members up to
$50,000 as specified in the DI-PPF Act from 1 May 2011.

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore
Financial Reporting Standards ("FRS"). The financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except as disclosed in the
accounting policies below.

The financial statements are the responsibility of the Agency.

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with FRS requires the
Agency to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the DI Fund's
accounting policies. It also requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates
and assumptions. Although these estimates are based on the Agency's best
knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ from
those estimates. The area involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or area where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements, is as follows:



DEPOSIT INSURANCE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 37 March 2013

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Financial assets, held-to-maturity

The Agency follows the guidance of FRS 39 in classifying non-derivative financial
assets -with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity.
This classification requires significant judgement. In making this judgement, the
Agency evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity.

If the Agency fails to keep these investments to maturity other than for specific
circumstances explained in FRS 39, it will be required to reclassify the entire held-
to-maturity financial assets as available for sale. The investments will be required
to be measured at fair value instead of at amortised cost upon reclassification.

Interpretations and amendments to published .standards effective in 2012

The new or amended FRS and Interpretations to FRS mandatory for application.
from 1 April 2012 did not have any material impact on the DI Fund's financial
statements.

2.2 Revenue recognition

Premium contributions

The Monetary Authority of Singapore (the "MAS") is charged under the DI-PPF
Act to compute the premium contributions payable by DI Scheme members and
refunds, and to notify the amounts to the Agency. Premium contributions are
recognised in the period in which the premium contributions are due, by reference
to the written notices given by the Agency to the DI Scheme members. Refunds of
premium contributions are recognised in the period in which the notice to refund is
received from the MAS.

Interest income from financial assets

In accordance wifih FRS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement,
interest income from financial assets is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income for financial assets measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial assets. When calculating the effective interest rate, cash flows are
estimated by considering the contractual terms of the financial assets, including
transaction costs, premiums and discounts. For financial assets written down due
to impairment loss, interest income is recognised using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring impairment loss.

2.3 Trade and other pavables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value, and subsequently
carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

E



DEPOSIT INSURANCE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 March 2073

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Provisions for other liabilities and char es

Provisions for other liabilities and charges are recognised when the DI Fund has a
legal or constructive obligation that as a result of past events, it is more likely than
not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the
amounf has been reliably estimated. In particular, provision for liability to make:

(a) compensation payment is recognised when the Agency receives
notification from ±he MA.S under sec#ion 21 ~f the D!-PPF Act; and

(b) refund of premium contributions received is recognised when the Agency:

(i) receives notification from the MAS under section 18 of the DI-PPF Act;
or

(ii) receives approval under section 17 of the DI-PPF to refund or remit
premium contributions.

2.5 Financial assets

(a) Classification

Financial assets are classified in the following categories: loans and
receivables and held-to-maturity. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the assets were acquired. The Agency determines the
classification of the financial assets at initial recognition.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets, except those maturing later
than 12 months after the balance sheet date which are classified as
non-current assets. Loans and receivables include "advance to the
Agency", "other receivables" and "cash and cash equivalents" on
the balance sheet. Loans and receivables amounted to $2,581,963
(2012: $4,418,277).

(ii) Financial assets, held-to-maturity

Financial assets, held-to-maturity, are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities
that the DI Fund has the-positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. If the DI Fund were to sell other than an insignificant
amount of held-to-maturity financial assets, the whole cafiegory
would be tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale. Financial
assets, held-to-maturity, are presented as non-current assets,
except for those maturing within 12 months after the balance sheet
date which are presented as current assets.
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DEPOSIT INSURANCE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 37 March 2093

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Financial assets (continued) ,

(b) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
value date -the date on which the sold assets are delivered and the
purchased assets are paid for. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the DI Fund has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership.

On disposal of a financial asset, the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income. Any amount in the fair value reserve relating to
that asset is transferred to the statement of comprehensive income.

Receivables that are factored out to banks and other financial institutions
with recourse are not derecognised until the recourse period has expired
and the risks and rewards of the receivables have been fully transferred.
The corresponding cash received from the financial institutions is recorded
as borrowings.

(c) Initial measurement

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs.

(d) Subsequent measurement

Loans and receivables and financial assets, held-to-maturity are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(e) Impairment

The Agency assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and recognises an allowance for impairment when such evidence
exists.

11



DEPOSIT INSURANCE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 March 2073

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Financial assets (continued

(e) Impairment (continued)

Loans and receivables. /Financial assets, held-to-maturity

The Agency assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that these.financial assets are impaired and recognises
~n ~Ilc~~ancP fqr impairment ~hPn s~~ch Pyi~ence Pxis#s. Si;nific~nt
financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in
payments are considered indicators that the receivable is impaired.

The carrying amount of these assets is reduced through the use of an
impairment allowance account which is calculated as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future. cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
amount of the allowance for impairment is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income. When the asset becomes uncollectible, it is written
ofF against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are recognised against the same line item in profit or
loss.

Impairment loss is reversed through the statement of comprehensive
income. The carrying amount of the asset previously impaired is increased
to the extent that the new carrying amount does not exceed the amortised
cost had no impairment been recognised in prior periods.

2.6 Currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of the DI Fund are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which-the entity operates ("the
functional currency"). The financial statements are presented in Singapore Dollars,
which is the DI Fund's functional and presentation currency.

3. Net expendi#ure incurred by Singapore Deposit Insurance Corporation
Limited

Net expenditure incurred by the Agency in carrying out the objects of the DI-PPF
Act are payable from the DI Fund as provided under the DI-PPF Act.
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DEPOSIT INSURANCE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial vear ended 37 March 2013

4. Income tax

The DI Fund does not have taxable income for this financial year. The premium
contributions received from DI Scheme members are exempted from income tax.
In addition, its investment income is exempted from income tax until such time the
DI Fund reaches 0.3% of the aggregate of the insured deposit base of every DI
Scheme member or 2018, whichever is earlier.

5. Cash and cash equivalents
2013 2012

$ $

Cash at bank and on hand 21,785 1,606,359

Cash at bank and on hand are denominated in Singapore Dollar.

6. Advance to the Agency and other receivables

Advance to the Agency to cover the Agency's operating and capital expenditures
and other receivables are interest free and have no fixed term of repayment. They
are denominated in Singapore Dollar.

7. Financial assets, held-to-maturity

Financial assets, held-to-maturity are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities that the Agency has the positive
intention and the DI Fund has the ability to hold to maturity. These assets are
initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs, and are subsequently re-
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The DI Fund's
held-to-maturity investments comprise:

2013 2012
$ 

$

Current
Singapore Government treasury bills and MAS bills 4,773,552 999,440
Non-current
Singapore Government bonds 123,273,552 98,519,844
Total 128,047,104 99,519,284

The total fair value of the held-to-maturity investments, measured using quoted
market bid prices as at 31 March 2013 was $139,468,734 (2012: $109,807,727).
The non-current held-to-maturity investments have maturity dates between 2016
and 2042.
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DEPOSIT INSURANCE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 37 March 2013

8. Financial risk management

(a) Market risk

(i) Currency risk

The DI Fund's operations are not exposed to significant foreign
currency risks as its investments and operating transactions are
denominated in Singapore Dollar.

ii) Equity pricy ris;~

The DI Fund has no exposure to equity price risk as it does not
hold equity financial assets.

(iii) Interest rate risk

There are two elements of interest rate risk. Cash flow interest rate
risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Fair
value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.

The DI Fund's investments in Singapore Government .bonds are
not subjected to cash flow interest rate risk as the interest
payments are fixed. The DI Fund's investments in Singapore
Government treasury bills and MAS bills are not exposed to
significant interest rate risk due to the short-term nature of these
securities.

The DI Fund's investments are subject to fair value interest rate
risk. The changes in fair value due to interest rate movements are
not reflected in the financial statements, as these securities are
accounted for as held-to-maturity financial assets. See Note 7 for
details on the investments' fair values as at year end.

(b) Credit risk

The DI Fund's financial assets comprise:

(i) Investments in Singapore Government Securities, MAS bills and
accrued interest receivable on such securities; the issuer, the
Singapore Government, has a credit rating of "AAA" from Standard
& Poor's and Fitch Ratings

(ii) Current account balances with a major bank in Singapore and the
MAS

(iii) Advance to the Agency to fund the Agency's budget spending

The DI Fund has no past due or impaired assets.
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DEPOSIT INSURANCE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial near ended 37 March 2073

8. Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Liauidity risk

(i) Liabilities-related risk

The DI Fund is responsible for funding the expenditure of the
Agency in discharging functions prescribed in the DI-PPF Act. The
cash outflow required is the Agency's budg€~t which is de#ermined
before the start of each financial year in accordance with the
provisions of the DI-PPF Act. The DI Fund's annual cash inflows
are predictable, comprising

premium contributions which are usually collected on the first
day of the financial year; and
coupon from holdings of Singapore Government bonds.

Therefore, the DI Fund is able to provide adequate funding to meet
the Agency's budget spending.

(ii) Contingent liabilities-related risk

The making of compensation payments pursuant to the DI Scheme
established under the DI—PPF Act arises from the occurrence of
future events that are not within the control of the DI Fund or the
Agency. The Agency will pay compensation out of the DI Fund to
the insured depositors of a failed . DI Scheme member when
required to do so by the MAS under section 21(2) of the DI-PPF
Act. The Agency may raise cash from the assets held by the DI
Fund which comprises Singapore Government Securities and MAS
bills. Where this is insufficient, the Agency will obtain loans on
behalf of the DI Fund while awaiting payments from realisation of
the assets of the failed DI Scheme member. The Agency entered
into an agreement with the MAS on 9 February 2012 where the
MAS may provide the Agency a contingent liquidity facility of up to
$20 billion, in the event liquidity is needed for compensation
payments to insured depositors. For the financial year ended 31
March 2013, there was no request and no drawdown on the facility.
Furthermore, the Agency may raise additional premium
contributions in accordance with section 15 of the DI-PPF Act.
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DEPOSIT INSURANCE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial vear ended 31 March 2013

8. Financial risk management (continued)

(d) Accumulated surplus

The management of the DI Fund's accumulated surplus is circumscribed
by the DI-PPF Act. Premium contributions income is determined by the
MAS which is charged under the DI-PPF Act to set the premium rates at
which premium contributions are levied on DI Scheme members. When
the DI Fund's accumulated surplus reaches 0.3% of the aggregate of the
insured deposit base of every DI Scheme member, the MAS and the
~g~nc;~ may conduct a jcir~t r~v9ev✓ ~f the przrn~urr~ rats. As fog
investment income, the Agency is required to invest the DI Fund's moneys
with the objects of capital preservation and maintenance of liquidity.

The Agency ensures that the DI Fund maintains sufficient cash and liquid
assets to meet the fund's share of the Agency's budget for capital and
operating expenditures.

(e) Fair value measurement

At 31 March 2013, there were no assets or liabilities carried at fair value on
the balance sheet (2012: Nil).

The fair values of financial assets, held-to-maturity, are based on quoted
market bid-prices at the balance sheet date traded in active markets. The
fair value of financial assets, held to maturity is disclosed in Note 7.

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, advance to the Agency
and other receivables approximate their fair value at the balance sheet
date due to their short-term nature.

9. New or revised accounting standards and interpretations

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards
have been published and are mandatory for the DI Fund's accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 or later periods and which the DI Fund has
not early adopted. The Agency anticipates that the adoption of these standards,
amendments and interpretations will not have a material impact on the DI Fund's
financial statements.

10. Authorisation of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors of the
Agency on 21 June 2013.

16



ANNUAL REPORT
For the financial year ended 31 March 2073

POLICY OWNERS' PROTECTION LIFE FUND
(Established under the Deposit Insurance and Policy Owners' Protection Schemes Act
Cap. 77B)



POLICY OWNERS' PROTECTiOR! LIFE FUND
(Established under the Deposit Insurance and Policy Owners' Protection Schemes Act Cap. 778)

A►(~RlUAL REAOR~'
For the financial year ended 31 March 2013

Contents

Page

Statement by Singapore Deposit Insurance Corporation Limited

Independent Auditor's Report 2

Statement of Comprehensive Income 4

Balance Sheet 5

Statement of Changes in Accumulated Surplus 6

Cash Flow Statement 7

Notes to the Financial Statements 8



POLICY OWNERS' PROTECTION LIFE FU€~D

STATEMENT' BY SINGAPORE DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
For the financial year ended 31 March 2073

In the opinion of the directors of Singapore Deposit Insurance Corporation Limited (the
"Agency"),

(a) the accompanying financial statements as set out on pages 4 to 17 are drawn up
so as to present fairly, in all material respects, the state of affairs of the Policy
Owners' Protection Life Fund as at 31 March 2013, and the results, cash flows
and changes in accumulated surplus for the financial _year ended 31 March 2013
and have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Deposit
Insurance and Policy Owners' Protection Schemes Act Cap.77B; and

(b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the
Policy Owners' Protection Life Fund will be able to pay its debts as and when they
fall due.

On behalf of Singapore Deposit Insurance Corporation Limited

KOH YONG GUAN
Director

21 June 2013

C~

HAN ENG J N
Director



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
SINGAPORE DEPOSIT INSUR~INCE CORPORATION LIMITED

- POLICY OWNERS' PROTECTION LIFE FUND
For the financial year ~nd~d 31 March 20'!3

Report on the Financial Statement

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Policy Owners' Protection
Fund-(the "PPF Life. Fund"), set aut an .pages 4 to 17, which.. comprise the balance sheet
as at 31 March 2013, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes
in accumulated surplus and cash flow statement for the financial year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory_ information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The management of Singapore Deposit Insurance Corporation Limited (the "Agency") is
responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with the provisions of the Deposit Insurance and Policy Owners' Protection
Schemes Act Cap. 77B (the "DI-PPF Act") and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards,
and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to
provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from
unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they
are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair profit and loss
accounts and balance sheet and to maintain accountability of assets.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosure in the fin~nri~l statements. The proceci~ires selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
management of the Agency, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
SINGAPORE DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

POLICY OWNERS' PROTECTION LIFE FUND
For the financial year ended 31 March 2013 (continued)

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements of the PPF Life Fund are properly drawn up in
accordance with the provisions of the DI-PPF Act and Singapore Financial Reporting
Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the PPF Life Fund as
at 31 March 2013 and the results, changes in accumulated surplus and cash flows. of the
PPF Life Fund for the financial year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion,

(a) the accounting and other records have been properly kept, including records of all
assets of the PPF Life Fund whether purchased, donated or otherwise; and

(b) the receipts, expenditure and investment of moneys by the PPF Life Fund during
the financial year have been in accordance with the provisions of the DI-PPF Act.

,C ~- . -1 ~.-~l

Ernst &Young LLP
Public Accountants and
Certified Public Accountants
Singapore

21 June 2013



POLICY OW~#ERS' PROTECTION LIFE FUk~D

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial year ended 31 March 2013

Income:
Levies
Interest income from financial assets

Expenses:
Net expenditure incurred by Singapore Deposit
Insurance Corporation Limited

Other expenses
Total expenses

Net surplus

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Note

1 May 2011 to
31 March

2013 2012
~ $

2.2 X4,9 65, 34 1x,601,234
2.2 622,693 106,864

24,788, 527 12,708, 098

3 747,757 625,085
60 40

747,817 625,125

24,040,710 12,082,973

2~, 040, 710 12 , 082 , 9 73

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



POLICY OWNERS' PR4TECTldN L[~E FU~1D

BALANCE SHEET
As at 37 March 2073

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Advance to the Agency
Other receivables
Financial assets, held-to-maturity

Non-current assets

Financial assets, held-to-maturity

TOTAL ASSETS AND NET ASSETS

ACCUMUL.A7ED SURPLUS

Note 2013 2012
$ $

5 1,006 871,880
6 1,276,373 245,745
6 194,371 25,976
7 2,751,889 605,666

4,223,639 1,749,267

7 31,900,044 10,333,706

36,123, 683 12, 082 , 973

36,123,683 12,082,973

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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PQLICY OWf~EFtS' PROTECTIQN LIFE Fl1t~D

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the financial year ended 31 March 2073

Beginning of financial year/period

Total comprehensive income for the financial
year/period

End of financial year/period

Note 1 May 2011 to
31 March

2013 2012
$ $

12,082,973

24,040,710 12,082,973

8(d) 36,123,683 12,082,973

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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POLICY QWNERS' PROi'ECTION LIFE FUND

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the financial year ended 37 March 2073

Note 1 May 2011 to
31 March

2013 2012

$ $

Gash flows from operating activities
Net surplus 24,040,710 12,082,973
Less: Interest income-from financial assets (622,693) ('106,864)

23,418,017 11,976,109

Changes in working capital
- Advance to the Agency (1,030,628) (245,745)

Net cash from operating activities 22,387,389 11,730,364

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of financial assets, held-to-maturity (24,605,461) (11,019,330)
Proceeds upon maturity of financial assets,

held-to-maturity 605,546 -
Interest received from financial assets 741,652 160,846
Net cash used in investing activities (23,258,263) (10,858,484)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (870,874) 871,880
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial 5
year/period 871,880 -

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial 5
year/period 1,006 871,880

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial ,statements.



POLICY OWF~Ef~S' @ROTECTIOhf L#FE FU(~D

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial vear ended 31 March 2013

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying financial statements.

1. General information

The. Policy Qwners' Protection -Life Fund (the "PPF Life Fund"), established under
section 34 of the Deposit Insurance and Policy Owners' Protection Schemes Act
Cap. 77B (the "DI-PPF Act") and subject to the directions of the Minister, is
administ~r~d end managed try ~ingar~ore 9e;~osit Insurance (~or~oration I_~m~tPd
(the "Agency") designated by the Minister under section 56 of the DI-PPF Act as
the deposit insurance and policy owners' protection fund agency in 2011.

The Agency is a public company limited by guarantee incorporated under the
Companies Act Cap. 50 on 13 January 2006 and is domiciled in Singapore. The
address of its registered office is 10 Shenton Way, #11-06, MAS Building,
Singapore 079117.

The principal activities of the Agency are the administration of the Deposit
Insurance Scheme and the Policy Owners' Protection Scheme (the "PPF
Scheme") and the administration and management of the Deposit Insurance
Fund, the PPF Life Fund and the Policy Owners' Protection General Fund.

The PPF Scheme was established in Singapore for the benefit of policy owners in
respect of their protected policies as specified in the DI-PPF Act.

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore
Financial Reporting Standards ("FRS"). The financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except as disclosed in the
accounting policies below.

The financial statements are the responsibility of the Agency.

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with FRS requires the
Agency to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the PPF Life Fund's
accounting policies. It also requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates and assumptions. Although these estimates are based on the Agency's
best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ
from those estimates. The area involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or area where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements, is as follows:

E~'



PQLICY 01i1~~lERS' PR4TECTiOfd LIFE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 March 2073

2.

2.1

2.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Financial assets, held-to-maturity

The Agency follows the guidance of FRS 39 in classifying non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity.
This classification requires significant judgement. In making this judgement, the
Agency evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity.

If the Agency fails to keep these investments to maturity other than for specific
circumstances explained in FRS 39, it will be required to reclassify the entire held-
to-maturity financial assets as available for sale. The investments will be required
to be measured at fair value instead of at amortised cost upon reclassification.

Interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2072

The new or amended FRS
from 1 April 2012 did not
financial statements.

Revenue recognition

Levies

and Interpretations to FRS mandatory for application
have any material impact on the PPF Life Fund's

The Monetary Authority of Singapore (the "MAS") is charged under the DI-PPF
Act to compute the levies payable by PPF Scheme members and refunds, and to
notify the amounts to the Agency. Levies are recognised in the period in which
the levies are due, by reference to the written notices given by the Agency to the
PPF Scheme members. Refunds of levies are recognised in the period in which
the notice to refund is received from the MAS.

Interest income from financial assets

In accordance with FRS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement,
interest income from financial assets is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income for financial assets measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial assets. When calculating the effective interest rate, cash flows are
estimated by considering the contractual terms of the financial assets, including
transaction costs, premiums and discounts. For financial assets written down due
to impairment loss, interest income is recognised using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring impairment loss.
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POLICY OWf~ERS' PROTECTION! LIFE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 March 2073

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Trade and other pavables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value, and subsequently
carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

2.4 Provisions for other liabilities and charges

Provisions for other liabilities and charges are recognised when the PPF Life Fund
has a legal or constructive obligation that as a result of past events, it is more
likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation
and the amount has been reliably estimated. In particular, provision for liability to
make:

(a) compensation payment and payment to fund the transfer or the run-off of
the insurance business of a failed PPF Scheme member are recognised
when the Agency receives notification from the MAS under section 46 of
the DI-PPF Act; and

(b) refund of levies received is recognised when the Agency:

(i) receives notification from the MAS under section 43 of the- DI-PPF
Act; or

(ii) receives approval under section 42 of the DI-PPF Act to refund or
remit levies.

2.5 Financial assets

(a) Classification

Financial assets are classified in the following categories: loans and
rec~ivabl~s and held~to-maturity. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the assets were acquired. The Agency determines the
classification of the financial assets at initial recognition.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.

- They are included in current assets- except those- maturing later
than 12 months after the balance sheet date which are classified as
non-current assets. Loans and receivables include "advance to the
Agency", "other receivables" and "cash and cash equivalents" on
the balance sheet. Loans and receivables amounted to $1,471,750
(2012: $1,143,601).

10



POLICY OWNERS' PROTECTIOtd LIFE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 March 2013

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Financial assets (continued)

(a) Classification (continued)

(ii) Financial assets, held-to-maturity

Financial assets, held-to-maturity, are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities
that the PPF Life Fund has the positive intention and ability to hold
to maturity. If the PPF Life Fund were to sell other than an
insignificant amount of held-to-maturity financial assets, the whole
category would be tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale.
Financial assets, held-to-maturity, are presented as non-current
assets, except for those maturing within 12 months after the
balance sheet date which are presented as current assets.

(b) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
value date -the date on which the sold assets are delivered and the
purchased assets are paid for. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the PPF Life Fund has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership.

On disposal of a financial asset, the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income. Any amount in the fair value reserve relating to
that asset is transferred to the statement of comprehensive income.

Receivables that are factored out to banks and other financial institutions
with recourse are not derecognised until the recourse period has expired
and the risks and rewards of the receivables have been fully transferred.
The corresponding cash received from the financial institutions is recorded
as borrowings.

(c) Initial measurement

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs.

(d) Subsequent measurement

Loans and receivables and financial assets, held-to-maturity are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

11



POLICY OWNERS' PROTECTION LIFE FUId~

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 March 2073

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Financial assets continued,

(e) Impairment

The Agency assesses at each balance sheet date. whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and recognises an allowance for impairment when such evidence
exists.

Loans and receivables /Financial assets, held-to-maturity

The Agency' assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that these financial assets are impaired and recognises
an allowance for impairment when such evidence exists. Significant
financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in
payments are considered indicators that the receivable is impaired.

The carrying amount of these assets is reduced through the use of an
impairment allowance account which is calculated as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
amount of the allowance for impairment is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income. When the asset becomes uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are recognised against the same line item in profit or
loss.

Impairment loss is reversed through the statement of comprehensive
income. The carrying amount of the asset previously impaired is increased
to the extent that the new carrying amount does not exceed the amortised
cost had no impairment been recognised in prior periods.

2.6 Currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of the PPF Life Fund are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates ("the functional currency"). The financial statements are presented in
Singapore Dollars, which is the PPF Life Fund's functional and presentation
currency.

3. Net expenditure incurred by Singapore Deposit Insurance Corporation
Limited

Net expenditure incurred by the Agency in carrying out the objects of the DI-PPF
Act are payable from the PPF Life Fund as provided under the DI-PPF Act.

12



POLICY OWNERS' PROTECTfOtd LIFE FtlND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial near ended 37 March 2013

4.

5

L

7.

Income tax

The PPF Life Fund does not have taxable income for this financial year. The
levies received from PPF Scheme members are exempted from income tax. In
addition, its investment income is exempted from income tax until such time the
PPF Life Fund reaches the size of 0.61 % of the aggregate protected liabilities in
respect of insured policies covered under the PPF Life Fund or 2018, whichever is
the earlier.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and on hand

2013 2012
$ $

1,006 871,880

Cash at bank and on hand are denominated in Singapore Dollar.

Advance to the Agency and other receivables

Advance to the Agency to cover the Agency's operating and capital expenditures
and other receivables are interest free and have no fixed term of repayment. They
are denominated in Singapore Dollar.

Financial assets, held-to-maturity

Financial assets, held-to-maturity are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities that the Agency has the positive
intention and the PPF Life Fund has the ability to hold to maturity. These assets
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs, and are subsequently
re-measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The PPF Life
Fund's held-to-maturity investments comprise:

2013 2012
$ $

Current
Singapore Government treasury bills and MAS bills 2,751,889 605,666
Non-current
Singapore Government bonds 31,900,044 10,333,706
Total 34,651,933 10,939,372

The total fair value of the held-to-maturity investments, measured using quoted
market bid prices as at 31 March 2013 was $34,053,957 (2012: $10,774,525).
The non-current held-to-maturity investments have maturity dates between 2027
and 2042.
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POLICY OWNERS' PROTECTION LIFE FU~iD

NOTES 1'O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 March 2013

8. Financial risk management

(a) Market risk

(i) Currency risk

The PPF Life Fund's operations are not exposed to significant
foreign currency risks as its investments and operating transactions
are denominated in Singapore Dollar.

In the event that the PPF Life Fund has a legal and constructive
obligation to make compensation payment and payment to fund for
the transfer or the run-off of the insurance business of a failed PPF
Scheme member, such obligations may be exposed to currency
risk if there are insured policies denominated in a currency other
than Singapore Dollar. However, this exposure cannot be reliably
estimated at this juncture as the occurrence of such event is not
within the control of the PPF Life Fund or the Agency.

(ii) Equity price risk

The PPF Life Fund has no exposure to equity price risk as it does
not hold equity financial assets.

(iii) Interest rate risk

There are two elements of interest rate risk. Cash flow interest rate
risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Fair
value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.

The PPF Life Fund's investments in Singapore Government bonds
are not subjected to cash flow interest rate risk as the interest
payments are fixed. The PPF Life Fund's investments in Singapore
Government treasury bills and MAS bills are not exposed to
significant interest rate risk due to the short-term nature of these
securities.

The PPF Life Fund's investments are subject to fair value interest
rate risk. The changes in fair value due to interest rate movements
are not reflected in the financial statements, as these securities are
accounted for as held-to-maturity financial assets. See Note 7 for
details on the investments' fair values as at the end of the financial
year.
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POLICY OWNERS' PROT~CTtORI ~tFE FU~1D

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 37 March 2073

8. Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Credit risk

The PPF Life Fund's financial assets comprise:

(i) Investments in Singapore Government Securities, MAS bills and
accrued interest receivable on such securities; the issuer, the
Singapore Government, has a credit rating of "AAA" from
Standard & Poor's and Fitch Ratings

(ii) Current account balances with a major bank in Singapore and the
MAS

(iii) Advance to the Agency to fund the Agency's budget spending

The PPF Life Fund has no past due or impaired assets.

(c) Liquidity risk

(i) Liabilities-related risk

The PPF Life Fund is responsible for funding the expenditure of
the Agency in discharging functions prescribed in the DI-PPF Act.
The cash outflow required is the Agency's budget which is
determined before the start of each financial year in accordance
with the provisions of the DI-PPF Act. The PPF Life Fund's
annual cash inflows are predictable, comprising

levies which are usually collected every July; and
- coupon from holdings of Singapore Government bonds.

Therefore, the PPF Life Fund is able to provide adequate funding
to meet the Agency's budget spending.

(ii) Contingent liabilities-related risk

The making of compensation payments pursuant to the PPF
Scheme established under the DI-PPF Act arises from the
occurrence of future events that are not within the control of the
PPF Life Fund or the Agency. The Agency will pay out of or utilise
the PPF Life Fund in the following manner when required to do so
by the MAS under section 46(2) of the DI-PPF Act:
- make payment of compensation to insured policy owners;
- fund transfer or run-off of the insurance business of a failed

PPF Scheme member.
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POLICY OWNERS' PROTECTION LIFE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 37 March 2073

~. Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

(ii) Contingent liabilities-related risk (continued)

The Agency may raise. cash from the assets held by the PPF Life
Fund which comprises Singapore Government Securities and MAS
bills. Where this is insufficient, the Agency will obtain loans on
behalf of the PPF Life Fund while awaiting payments from the
realisation of the assets of fihe failed PPF Scheme member. The
Agency may also raise additional levies in accordance with section
40 of the DI-PPF Act.

(d) Accumulated surplus

The management of the PPF Life Fund's accumulated surplus is
circumscribed by the DI-PPF Act. Levies income is determined by the
MAS which is charged under the DI-PPF Act to set the rates at which
levies are levied on PPF Scheme members. When the PPF Life Fund's
accumulated surplus reaches 0.61 % of the aggregate protected liabilities
in respect of insured policies covered under the PPF Life Fund, the MAS
and the Agency may conduct a joint review of the levy rates. As for the
investment income, the Agency is required to invest the PPF Life Fund's
moneys with the objects of capital preservation and maintenance of
liquidity.

The Agency ensures that the PPF Life Fund maintains sufficient cash and
liquid assets to meet the fund's share of the Agency's budget for capital and
operating expenditures.

(e) Fair value measurement

At 31 March 2013, there were no assets or liabilities carried at fair value on
the balance sheet.

The fair values of financial assets, held-to-maturity, are based on quoted
market bid-prices at the balance sheet date traded in active markets. The
fair value of financial assets, held to maturity is disclosed in Note 7.

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, advance to the Agency
and other receivables approximate their fair value at the balance sheet
date due to their short-term nature.
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POLICY OWfdERS' PROTECTt~N LIFE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial near ended 37 March 2073

9. New or revised accounting standards and interpretations

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards
have been published and are mandatory for the PPF Life Fund's accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 or later periods and which the PPF
Life Fund has not early adopted. The Agency anticipates that the adoption of
these standards, amendments and interpretations will not have a material impact
on the PPF Life Fund's financial statements.

10. Authorisation of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors of the
Agency on 21 June 2013.
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POLICY OWNERS' PROTECTION GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT BY SINGAPORE DEPOSIT INSURANCE C~f2PORATION LIMITED
For the financial vear ended 31 March 2013

In the opinion of the directors of Singapore Deposit Insurance Corporation Limited (the
"Agency"),

(a) the accompanying financial statements as set out on pages 4~ to 17 are drawn up
so as to present fairly, in all material respects, the state of affairs of the Policy
Owners' Protection General Fund as at 31 March 2013, and the results, cash
flows and changes in accumulated surplus for the financial year ended 31 March
2013 and have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Deposit
Insurance and Policy Owners' Protection Schemes Act Cap. 77B; and

(b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe- that the
Policy Owners' Protection General Fund will be able to pay its debts as and when
they fall due.

On behalf of Singapore Deposit Insurance Corporation Limited

KOH YON GUA HAN ENG JU, IV
Director Director

21 June 2013



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
SINGAPORE DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

- POLICY OWNERS' PROTECTION GENERAL FUND
l~or tt~~ financial year ended 31 March 2013

Report o~ the Financial ~taterr~ents

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Policy Owners' Protection
General Fund (the "PPF General Fund"), set out on pages 4 to 17, which comprise the
balance sheet as at 31 March 2013, and the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in accumulated surplus and cash flow statement for the financial
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The management of Singapore Deposit Insurance Corporation Limited (the "Agency") is
responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with the provisions of the Deposit Insurance and Policy Owners' Protection
Schemes Act Cap. 77B (the "DI-PPF Act") and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards,
and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to
provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from
unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are. properly authorised and that they
are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair profit and loss
accounts and balance sheet and to maintain accountability of assets.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements, and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
management of the Agency, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
SINGAPORE DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

- POLICY OWNERS' PROTECTION GENERAL FUND
For the financial year ended 31 March 2013 (continued)

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements of the PPF General Fund are properly drawn up in
accordance with the provisions of the DI-PPF Act and Singapore Financial Reporting
Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the PPF General
Fund as at 31 March 2013 and the results, changes in accumulated surplus and cash
flows of the PPF General Fund for the financial year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion,

(a) the accounting and other records have been properly kept, including records of all
assets of the PPF General Fund whether purchased, donated or otherwise; and

(b) the receipts, expenditure and investment of moneys by the PPF General Fund
during the financial year have been in accordance with the provisions of the DI-PPF
Act.

~ ~

Ernst &Young LLP
Public Accountants and
Certified Public Accountants
Singapore

21 June 2013
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POLICY OWi~ERS' PROTECTION GENERAL FUP~~

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial near ended 37 March 2013

Income:
Levies
Interest income from financial assets

Expenses:
Net expenditure incurred by Singapore Deposit
Insurance Corporation Limited

Other expenses
Total expenses

Net surplus

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Note

1 May 2011 to
31 March

2013 2012
$ $

2.2 2,676,98 1,446,519
2.2 34,704 4,650

2,711,202 1,451,169

3 424,932 352,646
60 40

424,992 352,686

2,286,210 1,098,483

2,286,210 1,098,483

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



POLICY OWNERS' PROTECTION GE~iERAL FUidD

BALANCE SHEET
As at 37 March 2013

Note 2013 2012
$ $

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 26,033 503,639
Advance to the Agency 6 726,627 149,744
Other receivables 6 4,251 930
Financial assets, held-to-maturity 7 703,000 33,982

1,459,911 688,295
Non-current assets
Financial assets, held-to-maturity 7 1,924,782 410,188

TOTAL ASSETS AND NET ASSETS 3,384,693 1,098,483

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS 3,384,693 1,098,483

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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POLICY OWNERS' PROTECTIO~d GENERAL F!lf~D

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the financial year ended 31 March 2013

Note 1 May 2011 to
31 March

2013 2012
$ $

Beginning of financial year/period 1,098,483 -

Total comprehensive income for the financial
year/period 2,286,210 1,098,483

End of financial year/period 8(d) 3,384,693 1,098,483

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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POLICY OWNERS' PROTECTION GENERAL FURlD

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the financial year ended 37 March 2073

Note 1 May 2011 to
31 March

2013 2012
$ $

Cash flows from operating activities
Net surplus 2,286,210 1,098,483
Less: Interest income from financial assets (34,704) (4,650)

2,251,506 1,093,833

Changes in working capital
- Advance to the Agency (576,883) (149,744)

Net cash from operating activities 1,674,623 944,089

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of financial assets, held-to-maturity (2,238,099) (446,928)
Proceeds upon maturity of financial assets,

held-to-maturity 33,975 -
Interest received from financial assets 51,895 6,478
Net cash used in investing activities (2,152,229) (440,450)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents (477,606) 503,639
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial 5
year/period 503,639 -

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial 5
year/period 26,033 503,639

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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POLICY 01~!lNERS' PROTECTION GE~lERAL FUf~~

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 37 March 2073

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying financial statements.

General information

The. Policy Owners' Protection General Fund (the "PPF General Fund")
established under section 34 of the Deposit Insurance and Policy Owners'
Protection Schemes Act Cap. 77B (the "DI-PPF Act") and subject to the directions
of the Minis#er, is administered anc~ managed by Singapore 9eposit Insurance
Corporation Limited (fhe "Agency") designated by the Minister under section 56 of
the DI-PPF Act as the deposit. insurance and policy owners' protection fund
agency in 2011.

The Agency is a public company limited by guarantee incorporated under the
Companies Act Cap. 50 on 13 January 2006 and is domiciled in Singapore. The
address of its registered office is 10 Shenton Way, #11-06, MAS Building,
Singapore 079117.

The principal activities of the Agency are the administration of the Deposit
Insurance Scheme and the Policy Owners' Protection Scheme (the "PPF
Scheme") and the administration and management of the Deposit Insurance
Fund, the Policy Owners' Protection Life Fund and the PPF General Fund.

The PPF .Scheme was established in Singapore for the benefit of policy owners in
respect of their protected policies as specified in the DI-PPF Act.

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The fin~nci~l st~t~mcnts have been prep~rcd in ~ccord~nce with Singapore
Financial Reporting Standards ("FRS"). The financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except as disclosed in the
accounting policies below.

The financial statements are the responsibility of the Agency.

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with FRS requires the
Agency to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the PPF General
Fund's accounting policies. It also requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates and assumptions. Although these estimates are based on the Agency's
best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ
from those estimates. The area involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or area where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements, is as follows:



POLICY OWNERS' PROTECTION GENERAL FU~i~

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 March 2073

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation,~continued~

Financial assets, held-to-maturity

The Agency follows the guidance of FRS 39 in classifying non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity.
This classification requires significant judgement. In making this judgement, the
Agency evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity.

If the Agency fails to keep these investments to maturity other than for specific
circumstances explained in FRS 39, it will be required to reclassify the entire held-
to-maturity financial assets as available for sale. The investments will be required
to be measured at fair value instead of at amortised cost upon reclassification.

Interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2012

The new or amended FRS and Interpretations to FRS mandatory for application
from 1 April 2012 did not have any material impact on the PPF General Fund's
financial statements.

2.2 Revenue recognition

Levies

The Monetary Authority of Singapore (the "MAS") is charged under the DI-PPF
Act to compute the levies payable by PPF Scheme members and refunds, and to
notify the amounts to the Agency. Levies are recognised in the period in which
the levies are due, by reference to the written notices given by the Agency to the
PPF Scheme members. Refunds of levies are recognised in the period in which
the notice to refund is received from the MAS.

Interest income from financial assets

In accordance with FRS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement,
interest income from financial assets is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income for financial assets measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial assets. When calculating the effective interest rate, cash flows are
estimated by considering the contractual terms of the financial assets, including
transaction costs, premiums and discounts. For financial assets written down due
to impairment loss, interest income is recognised using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring impairment loss.

D



POLICY OWNERS' PROTECTION GENERAL FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 March 2093

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Trade and other pavables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value, and subsequently
carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

2.4 Provisions for other liabilities and charges

I't'ovisions for other li~bilitiPs end cha~'~+es are recognised ~r~hen ±he PPF Genera!
Fund has a legal or constructive obligation that as a result of past events, it is
more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated. In particular, provision for
liability to make:

(a) compensation payment and payment to fund the transfer or the run-off of
the insurance business of a failed PPF Scheme member are recognised
when the Agency receives notification from the MAS under section 46 of
the Dt-PPF Act; and

(b) refund of levies received is recognised when the Agency:

(i) receives notification from the MAS under section 43 of the DI-PPF
Act; or

(ii) receives approval under section 42 of the DI-PPF Act to refund or
remit levies.

2.5 Financial assets

(a) Classification

Financial assets are classified in the following categories: loans and
receivables and held-to-maturity. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the assets were acquired. The Agency determines the
classification of the financial assets at initial recognition.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets, except those maturing later
than 12 months after the balance sheet date which are classified as
non-current assets. Loans and receivables include "advance to the
Agency", "other receivables" and "cash and cash equivalents" on
the balance sheet. Loans and receivables amounted to $756,911
(2012: $654,313).
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POLICY OWNERS' PR4TECTlON GENERAL FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
For the financial vear ended 37 March 2013

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Financial assets (continued)

(a) Classification (continued)

(ii) Financial assets, held-to-maturity

Financial assets, held-to-maturity, are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities
that the PPF General Fund has the positive intention and ability to
hold to maturity. If the PPF General Fund were to sell other than an
insignificant amount of held-to-maturity financial assets, the whole
category would be tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale.
Financial assets, held-to-maturity, are presented as non-current
assets, except for those maturing within 12 months after the
balance sheet date which are presented as current assets.

(b) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
value date -the date on which the sold assets are delivered and the
purchased assets are paid for. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the PPF General Fund has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

On disposal of a financial asset, the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income. Any amount in the fair value reserve relating to
that asset is transferred to the statement of comprehensive income.

Receivables that are factored out to banks and other financial institutions
with recourse are not derecognised until the recourse period has expired
and the risks and rewards of the receivables have been fully transferred.
The corresponding cash received from the financial institutions is recorded
as borrowings.

(c) Initial measurement

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs.

(d) Subsequent measurement

Loans and receivables and financial assets, held-to-maturity are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

11



PQLICY OWRlE{4S' PROTEC~lON GENERAL FU~3D

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 March 2073

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Financial assets (continued)

(e) Impairment

The Agency assesses. at each balance sheet date.. whether these is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and recognises an allowance for impairment when such evidence
exists.

Loans and receivables /Financial assets, held-to-maturity

The Agency assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that these financial assets are impaired and recognises
an allowance for impairment when such evidence exists. Significant
financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in
payments are considered indicators that the receivable is impaired.

The carrying amount of these assets is reduced through the use of an
impairment allowance account which is calculated as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
amount of the allowance for impairment is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income. When the asset becomes uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are recognised against the same line item in profit or
loss.

Impairment loss is reversed through the statement of comprehensive
income. The carrying amount of the asset previously impaired is increased
to the extent that the .new c~rryinc~ amount sloes not exceed the ~mortis~d
cost had no impairment been recognised in prior periods.

2.6 Currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of the PPF General Fund are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates ("the functional currency"). The financial statements are presented in
Singapore Dollars, which is the PPF General Fund's functional end presentation
currency.

3. Net expenditure incurred by Singapore Deposit Insurance Corporation
Limited

Net expenditure incurred by the Agency in carrying out the objects of the DI-PPF
Act are payable from the PPF General Fund as provided under the DI-PPF Act.

12



POLICY OWNERS' PROTECTION GENERAL FUND

NOTES 70 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 March 2073

4.

»~

6.

7.

Income tax

The PPF General Fund does not have taxable income for this financial year. The
levies received from PPF Scheme members are exempted from income tax. In
addition, its investment income is exempted from income tax until such time the
PPF General Fund reaches the size of 1.51 % of the gross premium income in
respect of insured policies covered under the PPF General Fund or 2018,
whichever is the earlier.

Cash and cash equivalents
2013 2012
~ $

Cash at bank and on hand 26,033 503,639

Cash at bank and on hand are denominated in Singapore Dollar.

Advance to the Agency and other receivables

Advance to the Agency to cover the Agency's operating and capital expenditures
and other receivables are interest free and have no fixed term of repayment. They
are denominated in Singapore Dollar.

Financial assets, held-to-maturity

Financial assets, held-to-maturity are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities that the Agency has the positive
intention and the PPF General Fund has the ability to hold to maturity. These
assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs, and are
subsequently re-measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The PPF General Fund's held-to-maturity investments comprise:

2013 2012
$ $

Current
Singapore Government treasury bills and MAS bills 703,000 33,982
Non-current
Singapore Government bonds 1,924,782 410,188
Total 2,627,782 444,170

The total fair value of the held-to-maturity investments, measured using quoted
market bid prices as at 31 March 2013 was $2,596,551 (2012: $442,809). The
non-current held-to-maturity investments have maturity dates between 2024 and
2030.
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POLICY OWNERS' PROTECTION GEf~ERAL FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 March 2073

8. Financial risk management

(a) Market risk

(i) Currency risk

The PPF General Fund's operations are not exposed to significant
foreign currency risks as its investments and operating transactions
are denominated in Singapore Dollar.

In -the event that the PPF General Fund has a legal and
constructive obligation to make compensation payment and
payment to fund for the transfer or the run-off of the insurance
business of a failed PPF Scheme member, such obligations may
be exposed to currency risk if there are insured policies
denominated in a currency other than Singapore Dollar. However,
this exposure cannot be reliably estimated at this juncture as the
occurrence of such event is not within the control of the PPF
General Fund or the Agency.

(ii) Equity price risk

The PPF General Fund has no exposure to equity price risk as it
does not hold equity financial assets.

(iii) Interest rate risk

There are two elements of interest rate risk. Cash flow interest rate
risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Fair
value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.

The PPF General Fund's investments in Singapore Government
bonds are not subjected to cash flow interest rate risk as the
interest payments are fixed. The PPF General Fund's investments
in Singapore Government treasury bills and MAS bills are not
exposed to significant interest rate risk due to the short-term nature
of these securities.

The PPF General Fund's investments are subject to fair value
interest rate risk. The changes in fair value due to interest rate
movements are not reflected in the financial statements, as these
securities are accounted for as held-to-maturity financial assets.
See Note 7 for details on the investments' fair values as at the end
of the financial year.
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P~L1CY OV`VN~RS' PROTECI°ION GENERAL FU(dD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 March 2013

8. Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Credit risk

The PPF General Fund's financial assets comprise:

(i) Investments in Singapore Government Securities, MAS bills and
accrued interest receivable on such securities; the issuer, the
Singapore Government, has a credit rating of "AAA" from Standard
& Poor's and Fitch Ratings

(ii) Current account balances with a major bank in Singapore and the
MAS

(iii) Advance to the Agency to fund the Agency's budget spending

The PPF General Fund has no past due or impaired assets.

(c) Liauiditv risk

(i) Liabilities-related risk

The PPF General Fund is responsible for funding the expenditure
of the Agency in discharging functions prescribed in the DI-PPF
Act. The cash outflow required is the Agency's budget which is
determined before the start of each financial year in accordance
with the provisions of the DI-PPF Act. The PPS General Fund's
annual cash inflows are predictable, comprising

levies which are usually collected every July; and
- coupon from holdings of Singapore Government bonds.

Therefore, the PPS General Fund is able to provide adequate
funding to meet the Agency's budget spending.

(ii) Contingent liabilities-related risk

The making of compensation payments pursuant to the PPF
Scheme established under the DI-PPF Act arises from the
occurrence of future events that are not within the control of the
PPF General Fund or the Agency. The Agency will pay out of or
utilise the PPF General Fund in the following manner when
required to do so by the MAS under section 46(2) of the DI-PPF
Act.
- make payment of compensation to insured policy owners or

third parties;
- fund transfer or run-off of the insurance business of a failed

PPF Scheme member.
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POL{CY OWNERS' P~OTECTtON GE~lE~aAL FU~t~

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 March 2073

8. Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

(ii) Contingent liabilities-related risk (continued)

The Agency may raise. cash from the assets held by the PPF
General Fund which comprises Singapore Government Securities
and MAS bills. Where this is insufficient, the Agency will obtain
Icaan~ can behalf of the PPF cenPral Fund while awaiting payments
from the realisation of the assets of the failed PPF Scheme
member. The Agency may also raise additional levies in
accordance with section 40 of the DI-PPF Act.

(d) Accumulated surplus

The management of the PPF General Fund's accumulated surplus is
circumscribed by the DI-PPF Act. Levies income is determined by the
MAS which is charged under the DI-PPF Act to set the rates at which
levies are levied on PPF Scheme members. When the PPF General
Fund's accumulated surplus reaches 1.51 % of the gross premium income
in respect of insured policies covered under the PPF General Fund, the
MAS and the Agency may conduct a joint review of the levy rates. As for
investment income, the Agency is required to invest the PPF General
Fund's moneys with the objects of capital preservation and maintenance of
liquidity.

The Agency ensures that the PPF General Fund maintains sufficient cash
and liquid assets to meet the fund's share of the Rgency's budget for capital
and operating expenditures.

(e) Fair value measurement

At 31 March 2013, there were no assets or liabilities carried at fair value on
the balance sheet.

The fair values of financial assets, held-to-maturity, are based on quoted
market bid-prices at the balance sheet date traded in active markets. The
fair value of financial assets, held to maturity is disclosed in Note 7.

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, advance to the Agency
and other receivables approximate their fair value at the balance sheet
date due to their short-term nature.
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POLICY OWNERS' PROTECTION GENERAL FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 37 March 2073

9. New or revised accounting standards and interpretations

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards
have been published and are mandatory for the PPF General Fund's accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 or later periods and which the PPF
General Fund has not early adopted. The Agency anticipates that the adoption of
these standards, amendments and interpretations will not have a material impact
on the PPF General Fund's financial statements.

10. Authorisation of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors of the
Agency on 21 June 2013.
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